Form 10-300 (Rev. 6-72)

S

C

Z

ш

S

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

P	H	00	22	Sales Sa	3	L	
TATE:							•

-F	HUU	22	24	8
STATE:	7			
COUNTY	' :			
	FOR NPS	USE ONL	Y	
ENTRY	DATE			

			E	NTRY DATE	LONLI		
(Type all entries	s - complete app	licable sectio	l l		JUL 2 3 1973	\dashv	
I. NAME			-				
Wheat Row							
AND/OR HISTORIC:						_	
2. LOCATION							
STREET AND NUMBER: 1315, 1317, 1319, a	and 1321 Four	th Street.	S.W.				
CITY OR TOWN:				NAL DISTRICT: Cond	gressman	\dashv	
Washington	· .		Walter E	Fauntroy, D.	=		
STATE	_	CODE	COUNTY:	,	COD		
District of Columbi 3. CLASSIFICATION	.a	11	District	t of Columbia	00)1	
CATEGORY	T			Τ	ACCESSIBLE		
(Check One)		OWNERSHIP		STATUS	TO THE PUBLI	1	
District X Building	☐ Public	Public Acquisit	ion:	X Occupied	Yes:		
Site Structure	X Private	☐ In Pro		Unoccupied	Restricted Unrestricted		
☐ Object	☐ Both	Being	Considered	Preservation work	No	·	
	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		in progress		_	
PRESENT USE (Check One or)		Park			194 110		
		_) Fark ☑ Private Reside		Transportation Other (Specify)	4 Common's		
	ilitary	Religious			RECEIVED		
☐ Entertainment ☐ M	useum	Scientific	. —		UN 121000	型	
4. OWNER OF PROPERTY				A	1973		
OWNER'S NAME:	and Too			R	EGISTER	/~/si	
Harbour Square Owne	its, inc.	 			-4ISTER		
500 N Street, S.W.					FILE		
CITY OR TOWN:			STATE:		FODE		
Washington 5. LOCATION OF LEGAL DESC	POIDTION		Distr:	<u>ict of Columbia</u>	a <u> </u>		
COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF						0	
Recorder of Deeds				•		0 C Z	
STREET AND NUMBER:		- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				14:	
6th and D Streets,	N.W.		STATE		CODE	1	
Washington				ict of Columbia			
			DISCI	LCL OF COTUMDIA	1 11 .		
6. REPRESENTATION IN EXIS	TING SURVEYS						
ter of Historic Pla	ed District	of Columbia	a Addition	ns to the Natio	onal Regis-	Z	
ter of Historic Pla	ces recommend	ded by the	Joint Cor	mittee on Land	imarks Local	ENTRY NUMB	FOF
DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RE	ECORDS:					, Z	Z
National Capital Pl	anning Commis	ssion				20 D	FOR NPS USE
	-						
1325 G Street, N.W.			STATE:		CODE	<u> </u>	ONLY
Washington			Distr	ict of Columbia	i	lol	`
<u> </u>			1			ATE	

7.	DESCRIPTION								
					(Chec	ck One)			
	CONDITION	🔀 Excellent	☐ Good	☐ Fair	☐ Det	eriorated	Ruins	Unexposed	
	CONDITION		(Check Or	1e)			(Che	ck One)	
			ered	Unaltered		l		😾 Original Site	

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Wheat Row consists of four attached, three-story brick houses built as a unit in the late eighteenth century. They are located in Southwest Washington in an area which was almost totally cleared in the late 1950's and early 1960's during urban renewal. Today the row is a part of Harbour Square Co-Operative Apartments, a complex of townhouses and highrise buildings erected in 1964-66. The Duncanson-Cranch House and the Edward Simon Lewis House are the other historic buildings which are part of Harbour Square.

The building has a full basement with stone walls. The rest of the walls are brick laid in Flemish bond, except the north wall. This wall is unusual as it is partially laid in English bond and is believed to be the only instance of such bonding in an older building in Washington.

The rectangular building with low hipped roof is approximately 102-1/2' by 34'. The longer sides have twelve bays. Each of the four houses is three bays wide and the two central houses are slightly narrower than the corner houses. The main (east) facade has a four bay wide, slightly projecting central pavilion. This symmetrical, late Georgian facade does not reflect the internal arrangement of space. The pediment of the pavilion crosses party walls as the pavilion contains two bays of two houses. The standing seam metal roof carries two double chimneys. Originally the south facade of the building had three bays and the north end had no openings. Today three story townhouses erected in 1964-66 are attached at the north and south ends.

On the east and west facades (and originally on the south facade) belt courses of four rows of headers separate the first and second stories and the second and third stories. There is a wooden fretwork cornice. On the main facade a stone band separates the pediment from the third story. Two large chimneys mark the location of the party walls between the end houses and the two center houses.

Windows, except those of the basement, have stone sills and stone lintels with voussoirs and keystones. The elliptical window in the pediment of the main facade has stone facing. The window sash dates from the 1964-66 rehabilitation. Basement windows, which are not visible from the street as they open on to a trench bound by a simple metal fence, have 6/6-lights and brick arches. First and second story windows have 9/9-lights. The lower third story has 6/3-light windows.

There are four doorways on the east facade, two located in the corner bays and two located in the center bays. These doorways have semicircular fanlights under brick arches. Sometime prior to the 1964-66 rehabilitation the entrance at 1317 Fourth Street was altered so that it had a flat, brick, jack arch imitating the stone arches of the windows. This arch was removed and replaced by a semicircular brick arch during the rehabilitation. Beside each entrance are modern, globe lighting fixtures.

(Continued on Form 10-300a)

SIGNIFICANCE			
PERIOD (Check One or More as A	Appropriate)		
Pre-Columbian	16th Century	🔀 18th Century	20th Century
☐ 15th Century	☐ 17th Century	19th Century	
SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applicable	e and Known) C. 1794		
AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Che	ck One or More as Appropri	iate)	•
Abor iginal	Education	Political	Urban Planning
Prehistoric	Engineering	Religion/Phi-	X Other (Specify)
Historic	Industry	losophy	Early Development
☐ Agriculture	Invention	Science	of the Federal City
Architecture	Landscape	Sculpture	3
☐ Art	Architecture	Social/Human-	
☐ Commerce	Literature	itarian	
Communications	Military	Theater	
Conservation	☐ Music	Transportation	-

The Joint Committee on Landmarks has designated Wheat Row at 1315-1321 Fourth Street, S.W., a Category II Landmark of importance which contributes significantly to the cultural heritage and visual beauty of the District of Columbia. The four attached houses are probably the first speculative housing erected after Washington was chosen as the seat of government. They were built by the Greenleaf Syndicate about 1794 and their design is attributed to the architect-builder, William Lovering.

Daniel Reiff, an architectural historian, believes that Wheat Row's design is similar to that of earlier Georgian buildings with central pedimented pavilions, such as Hollis Hall at HarvardUniversity built in 1762-63, and that in 1794 this was "a somewhat backward style." The building is an important example of conservative, vernacular domestic architecture constructed in Washington in the Federal Period.

James Greenleaf was the United States Consul in Amsterdam when he visited Washington in 1793. He purchased 3,000 lots in the new city, but later in the year relinquished his lots and with Robert Morris and John Nicholson purchased 6,000 lots. These three men, known as the Greenleaf Syndicate, controled one-third of the saleable land in Washington. They were required by the Commissioners to build twenty houses a year for seven years in order to receive title to the property. Wheat Row, the Thomas Law House, and the Duncanson-Cranch House were among the first houses built by the syndicate.

The name, "Wheat Row," is derived from a nineteenth century owner, John Wheat. Wheat lived at and owned 1315 Fourth Street as early as 1819 and in 1844 left 1315, 1319, and 1321 Fourth Street to his wife, Mary. Wheat was listed in the 1830 Washington Directory as a gardener and in 1834 he was listed as a Senate messenger. Members of the Wheat family owned part of the row until at least 1868.

Other owners of Wheat Row houses in 1819 include Robert P. Washington, owner of 1317 Fourth Street; Richmond Johnson, owner of 1319 Fourth Street; and Thomas L. Washington and Philip Stuart, owners of 1321 Fourth Street. By 1824 Stuart was sole owner of 1321 and was part owner with Johnson of 1319 Fourth Street. Stuart is not listed in the Washington directory of 1822 but in 1830 a "Gen. Philip Stewart" probably resided at Wheat Row. It is probable that "Stewart" and "Stuart" are the same person. Stuart (1760-1830)

(Continued on Form 10-300a)

																													: 1	

Assessments, Atlas, Directories, Newspaper Clippings, and Photographs. Washingtoniana Collection. D.C. Public Library.

Assessments. Corporation of Washington. 1814, 1819, and 1824. National Archives.

"The Barney Neighborhood House and Social and Industrial Settlement, 1901-1942." Pamphlet.

10	GENCE	RAPHICAL I	λΑΤΔ									
		20000000 2000000 Bit 10000000		UDE COORDINAT	Fe	5,50	1 - 4	TITUDE	AND LONG	SITUDE CO	ORDINAT	res
				ATING THE PRO		0		NING TH	L CENTER	POINT OF	A PROP	
		·	<u> </u>			R				N TEN AC		
-	CORNER	LATI	TUDE	LONGITU	DE		L	ATITUDE	<u> </u>	L.	ONGITUD	E
- 1		Degrees Minu		1 5	Seconds				Seconds	Degrees		Seconds
	NW	0	, ,	,	"		38 °	52'	26 "	77°	01'	05"
	NE	0	, ,,	0,	,,							
	SE	٥	1 29	0	,,							
_	SW	9.	, ,	<u> </u>						<u> </u>		
- 1.				MINATED PROPE			s than				ita	
	LIST ALĻ	STATES AN	D COUNTIE	S FOR PROPERT	IES OVER	LA	PPING STA	TE OR C	OUNTY BO	HUNDAHIES	m/>	
	STATE:				CODE	ا ا	COUNTY		/0	D. 4	P W	CODE
						7			45	RECE	IVFN "	4)
	STATE:				CODE	1	COUNTY:		FA			GODE
						7				JUN 12	1072	
-	STATE:				CODE	1	OUNTY:		1_	MATI		CODE
						\dashv			10)	NATIO REGIS	JIVAL	
H	STATE:				CODE	+,	COUNTY:			X MEGIS	DIER	A CODE
-						丨`			/*	2		(J) -
<u>.</u>						1				Y/BT	116)	4
		PREPARED	ВҮ								1	
- 1		ID TITLE:										
			n, Arch	<u>itectural H</u>	istori	an				T_ :=:		
	ORGANIZ	ATION							•	DATE		
h	Nation	al Capit	al Plan	ning Commis	sion					Apri.	l 16,	1973
	STREET	AND NUMBER	₹:						•			
	1325 G	Street,	N.W.									
-	CITY OR				~	s	TATE					CODE
k	Vashin	gton					Distri	et of	Columbi	а		11
			FFICER C	ERTIFICATION		ı	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	WWW.0000000000000000000000000000000000	<u> </u>	ER VERIF	ICATIO	46444444444
						#						
				•								
	As the	designated	State Liai:	son Officer for the	ne Na-		T to - 1		L		:	in the
	tional	Historic Pre	servation.	Act of 1966 (Pub	lic Law				-	roperty is	пенаеа	ти гие
	89-665), I hereby n	ominate th	is property for in	nclusion		National	Registe	Γ,			
				certify that it ha			1	7.	a U			j
l	evalua	ted accordin	g to the c	iteria and proced	dures set			COLUMN		+0		
ļ			-	rvice. The reco				- 		ruy		
				nomination is:			Director,	Office of	Archeology	and Histor	ic Preser	vation
1		ational	State.						1	\bigcup		
	IN:	T.	State	Local	. []			7	125/2.	7		
		l hl	11. 7 11	1/ Lail			Date	/	123/(3	2		
	Name		111 11 Y	L Mals	1					4	<u> </u>	
	Hame	- \/\l\/\	vu / (1 July 200		.	ATTEST	:	Í	. (J	
- 1		17.		V					/ .	ياحتور	λ	7
	THE	Assistan	t to th	e Mayor for				j		. 71/		11-1
		Housing						(U //,	Muri	Ken (
		TOGSTIE	Trogram	ລຸ				Keepe	r of The I	Vation R	egister	
												# 1

GPO 931-894

JUN 1 2 1973

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

NATIONAL REGISTER **INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM**

(Continuation Sheet)

STATE	
COUNTY	
FOR NPS USE ON	LY
ENTRY NUMBER	DATE
.UH	2 3 1973

Number all entre 7. Description - Wheat Row

Wheat Row's walls and trim are now painted light gray in order to blend in with the new townhouses. The building was a more effective design when its white stone trim contrasted with its red brick walls.

The four houses have typical Federal townhouse plans with side halls with stairs and two rooms on each floor. These plans have been slightly modified to accommodate modern conveniences.

8. Significance

served in the Revolutionary Army, but probably never obtained a rank higher than lieutenant. From 1811 to 1819 he was a congressional representative from Maryland. He died on August 14, 1830, in Washington. Richmond Johnson probably lived in the Wheat Row house he owned in 1822 when he was a receiving teller in the Branch Bank. By 1830 he had moved and had changed jobs and was a clerk in the surgeon general's office. The Washingtons are not listed in city directories for 1822, 1830, or 1834 and probably did not reside at Wheat Row. A study of George Washington's genealogy shows no relation of these men to him.

The Wheat Row houses served primarily residential functions until 1939 when John Neligh, the director of industrial crafts at Barney Neighborhood House, left 1315 Fourth Street to Barney Neighborhood House, a community service organization. The house was then used as the U.S. Service Men's Club. Barney Neighborhood House received another Wheat Row property, 1319 Fourth Street. By 1950 the organization owned 1317 Fourth Street as well. 1317 and 1315 Fourth Street were used as residences, while 1319 Fourth Street housed a day nursery. In 1950, 1321 Fourth Street was owned by Floyd Bohman and contained apartments.

In 1964-66 Wheat Row was rehabilitated as a part of Harbour Square, an urban renewal housing project designed by Mrs. Chloethiel Smith. The 1794 building now serves its original function as four dwelling houses.

9. Bibliography

Bryan, W.B. A History of the National Capital 1790-1814. Vol. I. New York: MacMillan, 1914.

Clark, A.C. Greenleaf and Law in the Federal City. Washington: W.F. Roberts, 1901.

Columbia Real Estate Title Company. Deed Search Files. Case 24655.

A Brief History of Southwest Washington. D.C. Redevelopment Land Agency. Washington, 1957, pp. 15-16. (Continued on Form 10-300a, page 2)

Form 10-300a (July 1969)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

TATE	
COUNTY	
FOR NPS USE ONL	Υ
ENTRY NUMBER	DATE
JUL	2 3 1973

(Continuation Sheet)

(Number all entries)

9. Bibliography (continued)

H.A.B.S. D.C.-10, "Wheat Row."

Henry, R.B. Compiler. <u>Genealogies of Families of the Presidents</u>. Rutland, Vt.: Tuttle, 1935.

National Capital Planning Commission. Landmark Files.

Reiff, D.D. <u>Washington Architecture</u>, 1791-1861: <u>Problems in Development</u>. U.S. Commission of Fine Arts. Washington: U.S. Government Printing Office, 1971.

"Stuart, Philip." <u>Biographical Directory of the American Congress 1774-1927</u>. Washington: U.S. Government Printing Office, 1928, p. 1583.

